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[START TAPE 1]1

MR. GREGG BETHEL: - - follow through the2

Department of Education, Community Education3

Council of New York City and the school4

leadership team to discuss the proposed phase5

out of Christopher Columbus High School - - the6

team.7

Tonight this meeting will be recorded and8

transcribed. Before we begin the hearing if we9

have anyone who wishes to speak during the10

public - - portion of this hearing, sign up at11

the table down the hallway.12

If you sign the - - team and if you want to13

come up to speak - - you may need to be one of14

the signup guest. If you have a question,15

someone will provide an answer to any question -16

- supposed to be - - please write that question17

on the index cards that are provided at the18

back, and submit - - table outside.19

Only people who have signed up to speak - -20

comment, among the questions submitted to us on21

the SR [phonetic] - - to that.22

All panel participants, those sitting to my23

left, some of them you already seen were asked24

to be here no later than 5.30 p.m. and now that25
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we've - - who arrives late, he or she will be1

given the time to speak for the first opportune2

moment - - very first time - - have to say.3

There may be 11 officials to show all the4

first timers throughout this evening. We think5

Mr. Steve [phonetic] will do our best to6

accommodate them - - most of you will start with7

a public comment will be asked to speak first,8

I'm sorry - - officials who have - - Concerning9

the agenda - - to my right, - - to the left.10

For the first [phonetic] time we'll include11

a presentation of the proposal and presentation12

- - the participants follows on proper13

[phonetic] time.14

Speakers should already have signed up at15

the table in the lobby. Again, if you want to16

speak tonight, please stay calm - - public17

comments to be no longer than two minutes each.18

Time will be strictly followed for the19

speakers - - that the designated time is20

limited, and we will have a timekeeper who will21

- - 30 seconds left - - everybody has a chance22

to speak tonight.23

There will be a - - after the public comment24

period. Members of the audience, if you have a25
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question, - - sign at the table in the back1

this evening for public comment to take the2

first - - staff members will organize the3

questions into categories and get them ready - -4

.5

Some questions will be asked directly, and6

others will be asked together - - are7

repetitions [phonetic] among the questions8

[phonetic]. - - all individual questions may9

not be answered or addressed in the forum10

tonight the answers to the questions will be11

posted on the forum's website prior to the - -12

educational policy meeting.13

If at the end of the Hearing you still have14

questions, you're - - to direct them to us in15

the Department of Education by calling the16

number provided in the factsheet - - or sending17

them in to us in the email - - address also18

provided in the factsheet. - - to introduce the19

panel - - sitting at the far end of the table is20

Jeri Taylor-Brown, the Superintendent, I'm sorry21

- - start from this end, Deputy Chancellor,22

Santiago Taveras, Debra Maldonado - - , Barbara23

Gambino - - high school.24

FEMALE VOICE: - -25
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MR. BETHEL: Thank you very much1

Chancellor, we appreciate you being here - -2

high schools. We also have with us this evening3

- - school music team, that - - and we'll get4

back to the - - and have a chance to speak - - .5

We also got some other school HOD [phonetic]6

members, please - - Gregg Bethel from the7

Institute of Math and Science, thank you - -8

Teresa Garcia [phonetic] from - - , thank you9

Teresa, Sonia [phonetic] - - , Sonia's in the10

back, thank you very much, and - - and as I said11

before we - - will be given an opportunity to12

speak - - speakers, at this point - - Deputy13

Chancellor, Santiago Taveras - - .14

MR. SANTIAGO TAVERAS: Thank you - - Buenos15

noches, good evening, it's a pleasure to be16

here. I know - - under better circumstances, I17

do want to acknowledge a few more people in the18

audience, - - from United Federation of19

Teachers, here representing the side of teachers20

- - representative for the CSA - - are our21

sisters and brothers from - - here?22

[applause]23

MR. TAVERAS: I would also want to24

acknowledge the principals of the other schools25
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in the building, - - principals, assistant1

principals and staff of the - - schools and2

other associations of staff from Columbus, so3

good to see you again, I've been here a few4

times - - I know there's other secretaries5

[phonetic] that, you know, are going to say6

appreciate - -7

I do ask of every single one of you to be8

mindful of the - - , I know some of the parents9

go there with young ones, so please be mindful10

of what you say, and respect to each other,11

because regardless of what happens on February -12

- , we will continue to see each other because13

there are many people here who I've known for14

many, many years, and no matter what, we will15

continue to work together and move forward.16

I do have a statement that I have to read,17

so please bear with me as I get through that18

statement.19

First of all, I just want to acknowledge20

everybody with - - and from the city-wide21

council on high schools, superintendent and22

anyone else that's here to support this hearing.23

This public hearing was convened to discuss24

the proposal - - Christopher Columbus High25

http://www.pdfpdf.com


7

School, and the proposed co-location to a new1

school - - the school, in the building X415.2

The decision to phase out a school is not an3

easy one, we do take these decisions -- we do4

not take these decisions lightly, we examine5

many factors - - we also reach out to families6

and community members.7

Before I -- before I present the Columbus8

High School proposal, I would want to say9

finally a few words.10

All of us can count on our schools to11

provide - - quality education to students, and12

we must hold all schools to the same standard of13

excellence, because every child in the city14

deserves the best education possible.15

When a school's - - is not good, we have to16

take action to ensure its current students don't17

fall -- fall behind, and new students will have18

better options.19

On December 20th, of 2010, the New York City20

Department of Education publicly proposed to21

phase out and eventually close Columbus High22

School, based on its poor performance and yearly23

assessment, - - to turn around quickly to what -24

- .25
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Columbus High School is a - - high school,1

and we want to inquire if - - you'd like to2

relocate to the community school district in - -3

Bronx. It currently serves students in Grades 94

and 12.5

I want us to - - case that the school has6

struggled for years, the Columbus four-year7

graduation rating was 47%, which is one of the8

lowest - - the average of 63%, which is - -9

graduation and ask, is the case next year? The10

four-year graduation we had numbers of 25% and11

city-wide average was over 60%.12

Columbus - - last year, with an F-grade for13

student performance, and an F-grade for student14

progress, and the mean grade was - - Columbus -15

- of the high school - - the 2009/2010 progress16

report.17

Safety issues have been a concern with18

mothers in recent years, New York City schools19

certainly will not single [phonetic] those20

students reported feeling much safe in the21

hallways, and bathrooms, and locker rooms.22

That same year 60% of the parents raised23

concern that their children -- about their24

children's safety. The DOE has consultancy25
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[phonetic] - - and have work loans into the1

school and - - and school staff to solicit2

feedback.3

I personally came on November 18th, - - we4

talked to parents, students, staff members at5

that time. We also talked about considerable6

support the DOE has offered Columbus over the7

last few years, including a census [phonetic]8

training for schoolchildren and teachers, helped9

Columbus to recommend [phonetic] more than10

$250,000 in grants to the - - Education program,11

for - - students and creating a program to help12

reduce the suspension and violent incidents at13

the school.14

Based on the comprehensive review the15

evidence that - - were not working, but he only16

believes that only the - - intervention, - - and17

eventual closure of the school will address some18

longstanding performance structures, and while19

the new school option is still - - meant to20

serve students and - - community.21

Columbus is currently - - with local22

enterprise high school, - - for Math and23

Science, - - Academy, and - - Academy. All five24

schools enroll students from grades 9 and 12,25
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there's also a District 75 school in the1

building that has a - - program, that serve2

students in the - - disabilities in grades 9 and3

12. So District 75 program - - Columbus if the4

proposal is approved.5

The - - borough center in the building - -6

as some of you may know, the community is also7

proposing to phase out - - . I will be here in8

the main entry, on January 28th to discuss that9

proposal with the - - enterprise community.10

If both the Columbus and local enterprise11

proposals are approved, these schools will12

gradually phase out in the next several years,13

and two replacements schools, including the14

school - - will begin phasing into the building15

in the year 2011 and 12.16

- - at full scale, these two new schools17

would serve approximately 400 to 450 students,18

ages 9 through 12. But other schools in the19

building, we're committed to - - continue to20

serve students ages 9 to 12.21

In 2010/2011, the term - - in the building22

is projected to be 3,039 - - proposals to phase23

out the numbers in local enterprise and to24

publicly - - are approved. The building - - 79%25
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in the year 2014/2013 [phonetic] - - before we1

move to the public comments section, I would2

like to briefly discuss the impact of the3

proposal on - - students and families, if it is4

approved. If the proposal is approved, Columbus5

- - at Columbus will be phased out gradually6

over the next several years.7

Columbus is in the District 75 program, at8

Columbus - - new migrant students have to - -9

2010/2011 school years. Current students will10

be supported by the - - progress towards11

graduation, while remaining enrolled in the12

school.13

More detailed information about all the14

options for current students is provided in the15

factsheet, and enrollment FAQ available at the16

back.17

In cases where students do not complete18

graduation requirements by the year 2014 closure19

date, the DOE will help - - families identify20

the type of programs and schools that meets to21

its needs so that they may continue the22

renovation at the Columbus and the District 7523

programs are completely phased out.24

The YABC program of - - by the phase-out of25
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Columbus and the D-75 program - -1

Thank you, I'm looking forward to hearing2

your comments and - - and I want - - and she is3

to perform for us before we start of the4

session. Thank you - - , thank you.5

[applause]6

MR. BETHEL: Thank you.7

MALE VOICE: Thank you - - the opportunity8

for - - just wanted to confirm a suggestion - -9

Thank you very much.10

MR. BETHEL: Thank you. Next presenter will11

be Lisa Puentes - -12

[applause]13

MALE VOICE: Thank you - - I heard someone14

say - - to meet you, the - - president - -15

representative - -16

[applause]17

MR. BETHEL: And DCEC president as well, - -18

[applause]19

MS. LISA PUENTES: Christopher Columbus High20

School opened its doors 72 years ago in 1939.21

Will it close? Well, that's entirely up to you.22

This is an alternative proposal from the school23

leadership team.24

Christopher Columbus Charter High School, a25
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proposal to solve the council [phonetic]1

leading [phonetic] challenge for a stronger,2

neighborhood school.3

MALE VOICE: The land on which Christopher4

Columbus High School was built was once a farm.5

At the tender age of five, my job was to - - .6

I find myself with that same obligation this7

evening.8

Opened in 1939 it became a bastion9

[phonetic] for the - - community - - expanding.10

The Bronx was overflowing and taking the excess11

population, only for the happiness [phonetic] to12

always end.13

It served generations of residents, 72 years14

of generations of residents. The small school15

movement that came along was openly embraced,16

integrated well into this community, that saw17

the siphoning off of Columbus' most prestigious18

programs, to become small schools in our own19

building.20

We called them our own, we embraced them, we21

accepted them, we welcomed them, they became us,22

we became them. This school's population has23

changed, with the needs of the school population24

rising, and incoming students and test scores25
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failing, Columbus which had always had strong,1

long-term outcome, began to struggle.2

With the federal and the state -- and city3

demands to raise the graduation rate from four4

to four years. My rate was three and a half5

years, overcrowding - - Columbus reach a tune6

[phonetic] of 180% of its capacity, this school7

ran on an end to end collision course schedule.8

The school opened at 7.30 a.m., and had its9

first session end at 12.30 p.m., only to welcome10

the incoming freshman class, the most11

challenging of the groups, into its building - -12

at 12.30 p.m., and let them escape from the13

building into the darkness of the - - evening,14

at their first semester year at 6 p.m.15

It was a recipe for failure, it was a recipe16

we did not welcome but we embraced, worked with,17

and did our very best to integrate, as we always18

have. For this is a staff that's - - ,19

workable, and always accommodating to anything20

that is thrown in our path.21

[applause]22

MS. PUENTES: The situation now, this year23

up to 332 high schools in New York City receive24

- - Columbus, fighting [phonetic] in its own25
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measure, had the highest needs to the1

population.2

The deal we spent most of last year trying3

to close the school, - - by a court order, the4

DOE brought parents against - - .5

Opportunity missed, instead of helping6

Columbus, the DOE has been - - another.7

Division of school and building, years of severe8

overcrowding, and public vilification. An9

overall lack of support leads us to feel that10

the Columbus community needs something to be11

merited.12

Our proposed solution, convert Columbus into13

a charter high school.14

[applause]15

MALE VOICE: Our goals will be different,16

Columbus will no longer be the over-the-counter17

drug of the Bronx. - - advising the student18

body, we plan to improve programming for19

students, programming for teachers, class size20

limits at 28 instead of the current contractual21

34, these will allow for stronger overall22

outcomes.23

MALE VOICE: Our - - will be the same, all24

currently enrolled students will stay, all25
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faculty and the administration will stay, - -1

. We will remain in our home, here at2

Columbus, we will continue to provide - - ,3

educational services - - in small schools.4

Our roles [phonetic] and new community5

needs, we will remain a school that serves all6

students, we will continue to provide a wide7

array of curricula options, including the arts8

and music, - - education, culinary arts,9

advanced - - and classes for our - - , our10

special needs, and for English - - learners,11

and also 26 - - .12

MS. PUENTES: By becoming a charter,13

Columbus will be able to provide block14

programming, which will help our students15

tremendously.16

We will have a dress code which we all know17

and we're waiting for, we will also have18

curriculum changes to reflect an understanding19

by design approach.20

[applause]21

MS. PUENTES: So I know everybody is22

wondering, what is a charter school, what is the23

truth about charter conversions? Trying to24

convert our public school that have sought to do25
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things differently, and have felt that the1

benefits of independence outweigh the additional2

responsibilities. That's exactly what we would3

love to have the opportunity to do.4

They're run by a board of directors, which5

in our case would consist of representatives of6

our parents, teachers, local community7

representatives and elected officials.8

They may be supported by organizations who9

help with the practical aspects of running a10

school, such as accounting. The UFT, an11

organization with experience in several schools,12

has kindly offered to support Columbus in this13

way.14

We have worked very, very hard with the15

community and our elected officials to gather16

support, and they have been unbelievable. State17

Senator Jeffrey Klein was here this evening--18

[applause]19

MS. PUENTES: Thank you. He stated his - -20

support, after reviewing the plans I am21

confident that the Christopher Columbus Charter22

High School will provide an excellent high23

school - - for students in the community school24

District of 11 in the Bronx.25
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Thank you - - .1

[applause]2

MS. PUENTES: Council member James Vonkle3

[phonetic] who has a representative here, he4

cannot make it evening, we thank them for all of5

their support for the school--6

[applause]7

MS. PUENTES: --this campus and Columbus.8

[applause]9

MS. PUENTES: By converting Christopher10

Columbus into a charter school the student body11

would be more representative of District 1112

community, and will - - reflect the waking13

[phonetic] abilities and needs of our children.14

Thank you.15

[applause]16

MS. PUENTES: Robert Jackson [phonetic].17

His letter consists of your team will be18

scanning [phonetic] the Department's - - program19

for - - yearly progress supersedes the concrete20

progress Columbus has been making by own21

[phonetic] measures.22

As a strategy for preserving the many23

strengths of your community, the conversion to24

charter status is a good option.25
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[applause]1

MS. PUENTES: John [phonetic] - - is here as2

- - did promise to attend the community board3

[phonetic] - - has been very, very supportive of4

- - and our staff. He states, Columbus High5

School has been taking in students with an array6

of problems, from homelessness to those with7

limited English knowledge.8

No child has been turned away from receiving9

an education at Columbus. The proposal10

submitted to convert Columbus into a charter11

school and emphasize work-study programs and12

provide enhanced - - support.13

We believe this will be in the best interest14

of those students that need this service to15

succeed. Thank you John - - .16

[applause]17

MS. PUENTES: Now let's imagine that this18

decision were in our hands, we had the right to19

actually make this decision and not have to wait20

for someone else to make it for us. Would we21

propose, we as the community, vote for the22

Department of Education's closure of Columbus23

and opening of a new small school?24

[crowd reply]25
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MS. PUENTES: Or, would we vote for1

Christopher Columbus Charter High School?2

[applause]3

MS. PUENTES: Columbus yesterday, Columbus4

today, Columbus tomorrow.5

[applause]6

MS. PUENTES: A public - - school for all of7

us. Thank you for coming and listening to our8

presentation from the school leadership team.9

[applause]10

MR. BETHEL: Thank you - - leadership team.11

This confirms that - - presentation - - trying12

to make sure - - if you have - - .13

[applause]14

MALE VOICE: Thank you very much, how's15

everyone doing tonight?16

[applause]17

MALE VOICE: I have to say, you know, I'm18

standing here tonight, this auditorium certainly19

brings back memories. I'm a proud graduate of20

Columbus High School.21

[applause]22

MALE VOICE: You know, one of the proudest23

moments I had, probably about -- probably about24

ten years ago, when I was inducted into the25
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Columbus High School Hall of Fame.1

Because I'm a lifelong resident of the2

Bronx, grew up in - - community, and to me3

Columbus High School will always be, as we said4

earlier, a - - school.5

And I think we have to understand what6

public education means. And I know everyone's7

hearing stories when they watch our nightly8

news, or read our newspapers about fiscal9

crisis, the downturn of our economy.10

But I think it's important for us -- each11

and every one of us, especially myself as an12

elected official, to kind of redefine our13

priorities.14

And I think one of our priorities always has15

to be that we have a duty, in the city of New16

York, in the state of New York, to make sure17

that our young people have a first-class public18

education. And I think that's something that's19

very, very - -20

[applause]21

MALE VOICE: You know, I'm the first member22

of my family to graduate from college, to23

graduate from graduate school, to graduate from24

law school, and the reason why I was able to do25
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all that, is because I was able to get a1

first-class public education. P.S. 108, - - and2

most of all, Columbus High School.3

[applause]4

MALE VOICE: And I think, you know, that has5

to continue, you know, my generation was lucky,6

your generation deserves the same, to make sure7

that we have a first-class institution.8

It's unfortunate Columbus so many years9

suffered a downturn you know, we saw the10

statistics, you know, I understand all of us, we11

do have a duty to the public education system to12

actually make sure we educate special needs13

kids, that important.14

But I think at the same time, this could15

bring, I think, a new renaissance to Columbus16

High School, bring Columbus High School back to17

the way it used to be.18

We still have students, their names may have19

changed, but they're still the types of kids20

that we want to make sure are our future. And21

the only way you're going to be our future, is22

if you have first-class public education.23

So I want to thank the leadership team, I24

want to thank first of all Puentes, let's give25
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her a big hand - -1

[applause]2

MALE VOICE: You know, I think - -3

principals in public education, you know,4

teachers - - but here's somebody who's taken it5

upon herself to save her school, taken it upon6

herself to make sure that this generation and7

future generations get a great public education.8

That is a first-class educator to me - -9

[applause]10

MALE VOICE: But, you know, I think another11

thing I was excited about when I learned that12

UFT, the teachers' union, they've done such a13

great job, is backing this school. Because I14

think one of the debates we're having, it's not15

only in New York State but across the country,16

is what is a charter school?17

Charter school may be a little different,18

but you want to know something? Charter schools19

are public schools, it provides public20

education, and most of all I think, it gives21

kids and the kids' parents a choice, a choice22

that they want the best for their kids, a choice23

that they want to make sure they're sending24

their child to a school that maybe specializes25
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in a specific area. Want to know something?1

That's -- there's nothing wrong with that.2

So I stand here today, as I said earlier, as3

a proud Columbus graduate, supporting the future4

Columbus Charter School. Thank you all very,5

very much.6

[applause]7

MR. BETHEL: Thank you - - representing8

Councilman - -9

MALE VOICE: - - I'm a little nervous. But10

I'm here on behalf of - - to be here. - -11

decisions do belong to a few bureaucrats - - it12

belongs to - -13

[applause]14

MALE VOICE: --the parents, the teachers --15

the parents, the teachers, everyone - - on the16

ground, preparing the students every day. Those17

are the people to decide the future of Columbus,18

because this is personal for them, because he19

too was a graduate of Columbus.20

And so there's a sense in which losing21

Columbus is like losing a piece of your22

childhood, is like losing a piece of our23

community, and so we're here to sing a song - -24

But the message is for you, don't close our25
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schools - - we should support with more1

resources.2

And so we're here to support you and the3

Councilman [phonetic] - - to the DOE making - -4

that you can - - the closure of Columbus, and5

the first step towards making Columbus, is to6

convert it into a charter school. So thank you.7

[applause]8

MR. BETHEL: Thank you Mr. - - , we'd like9

to acknowledge - - do you want to say anything,10

or - -11

FEMALE VOICE: No, just - -12

MR. BETHEL: - - to begin the public comment13

section - - we have 35 speakers that are signed14

up, you're reminded your public comment must be15

limited to two minutes, and each of the 3516

speakers takes their two minutes, that's a17

little over an hour.18

And after that period we'll have the19

opportunity for a question and answer session -20

- questions ahead of time. - - we will invite21

five people from the - - list up to the left22

side of the room, and we will invite five people23

from the even numbers to - - someone on the24

front who'll be - - 30 seconds left - - to stop.25
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You've been requested [phonetic] to1

respect - - speakers of panel, we want to accord2

to you the same respect as you speak, we do want3

to make sure you - - have your say, you have to4

respect your two minutes, also finish your5

thought, we'll allow you to do that. We want to6

make sure the folks that are at the back of the7

list cannot - - have their say as well.8

So to begin, I'll ask numbers one, three,9

five, seven and nine, which is Leo Casey,10

Khadija Holland [phonetic], sorry - - and Steven11

Cascarilla [phonetic] - - microphone to the12

left, right side will be even numbers and we'll13

- - in a second. John Defanio, - - Simone14

[phonetic], Mary Stivo [phonetic], and Moraine15

Rosmond [phonetic]. Hold the microphones - -16

[applause]17

MR. LEO CASEY: Good evening, my name is Leo18

Casey, and I'm the high school vice president of19

United Federation of Teachers.20

Christopher Columbus High School is not the21

private property of Mayor Bloomberg, Chancellor22

Prime [phonetic] or Chancellor Kline [phonetic].23

It is not--24

[applause]25
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MR. CASEY: It is not theirs to dispose1

off as they please, to sell off to the highest2

bidder. It is given to them in trust, by the3

people of New York City, that they provide it4

with the supports so that it can educate the5

young people of the Bronx.6

And the Department of Education and the7

Mayor of this city has betrayed that trust.8

[applause]9

MR. CASEY: It has failed Christopher10

Columbus High School with the most challenging11

students and providing no support to teach those12

students. By its own measures, Christopher13

Columbus High School has the highest14

concentration of need in all of New York City.15

It put in almost a quarter of the school's16

enrollment as the older [phonetic] the - -17

students, virtually one whole class. It has18

failed this school, it is not Christopher19

Columbus which has failed, it is the Department20

of Education and the Mayor of this city--21

[applause]22

MR. CASEY: Enough damage has been done, it23

is time to set this school free. It is time to24

allow the educators [phonetic] in this school25
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that have done everything to educate young1

people sent to them, without the help that they2

needed. It is time to let them educate the3

students of Christopher Columbus. Set it free.4

[applause]5

MR. BETHEL: Mr. Defanio?6

MR. JOHN DEFANIO: Thank you. My name is7

John Defanio, and I've been a social worker at8

Columbus High School for 22 years. I've been in9

the system for almost 28 years. We're here to10

consider the fate of Columbus High School, how11

do we see Columbus High School? Is it a12

building of bricks and mortar, is it a piece of13

prime real-estate to be sold for a good price?14

No, Columbus is a family, and has always15

been a family to those who work and go to school16

here.17

Columbus is a historical landmark, a sacred18

[phonetic] place, where generations of children19

and teachers that lived have parts of their20

precious lives.21

I graduated from Columbus High School in22

1964.23

[applause]24

MR. DEFANIO: Columbus is an organism, it25
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breathes, its heart beats, and it laughs and1

it cries. It is a human being, it's not an2

inanimate object that can be tossed around, and3

tossed away like an old shoe.4

Columbus does need help, but as in the case5

of a human being that need -- that needs help,6

you don't toss it away, - - put forth political7

agenda - - you act as educators, and you attempt8

to rehabilitate what is not broken and9

accentuate what is broken.10

[applause]11

MR. DEFANIO: Can you restore the funding to12

this school? Can the court [phonetic] - - the13

programs into practice year [phonetic], can the14

court [phonetic] teach us collaboratively? Just15

as - - to work with children - - .16

Can you resuscitate a worthwhile life? - -17

decide for that precious waste - - . I ask you18

today, don't sell your souls for some pieces of19

silver. Keep Columbus - - breathing and you20

won't be disappointed.21

As - - Yankee broadcaster used to say,22

"You'll be so glad you did it, and you'll feel23

good about yourselves." Thank you.24

[applause]25
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MR. BETHEL: - -1

FEMALE VOICE: If it wasn’t for the - -2

Columbus faculty and staff, students wouldn't3

have the - - to become who they are today. - -4

who with the help of the Science Department went5

to become - -6

[applause]7

FEMALE VOICE: Brianna [phonetic], who8

became -- who because of - - became a - - and a9

PD [phonetic].10

[applause]11

FEMALE VOICE: Berline [phonetic], with the12

help of Coach [phonetic] - - and the tennis team13

became a successful pro player.14

[applause]15

FEMALE VOICE: And Alfred [phonetic], with16

classes [phonetic] - - and businessman, became17

one of the best - -18

[applause]19

FEMALE VOICE: Now do you think Christopher20

Columbus is worth saving?21

[applause]22

MR. BETHEL: - -23

FEMALE VOICE: As a career educator whose24

most recent year was spent in Columbus High25
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School, I come here tonight to join the1

faculty, staff, students, and community, in2

helping to keep Columbus High School alive, open3

and well.4

And I'm here to stand for the right of every5

student to the same fine [phonetic] product6

[phonetic] public education that I received in7

the City of New York, intellectually,8

perceptually, emotionally.9

And I thank everybody at the DOE board for10

holding this hearing [phonetic] and I thank all11

of you who are present here. And now for - -12

change, you know this tune, "Mama [phonetic] DOE13

doesn't act, does [phonetic] strongly cares, but14

deep inside, I know it cares.15

And that is why I'm - - to promote this song16

[phonetic] - - I know where I must be, - -17

steadfastly, as long as the scores improve for18

me. When you aren't hearing [phonetic],19

experienced and skilled, our attention20

[phonetic] rates - - thrilled. I - - Mayor21

Bloomberg with us, we promise we'll never, never22

fuss. Schools will trust to us their - - "23

[applause]24

MR. BETHEL: - -25
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FEMALE VOICE: you want to - - and1

visiting artistes [phonetic], I want you to - -2

as long as we are finished [phonetic] and3

nothing is never, never - - . We promise to4

hold up the torch to - - student with their - -5

for today into the future. And that is what I6

wish for Columbus, all its present students and7

all its future students who are our future.8

Thank you.9

[applause]10

MR. BETHEL: Thank you - - Ms. Molan.11

MS. CHRISTINE MOLAN: Good evening, my name12

is Christine Molan, I'm with the UFT Teachers13

Center, and I also teach English to English14

language - - seniors in Columbus.15

I'd like to expunge [phonetic] to the16

Department of Education's assertion that we can17

do better. The Department of Education has18

frequently compared Columbus to Truman19

unfavorably. But I'd like to point out that20

there are -- there are striking differences21

between the two schools.22

Firstly, Truman has far fewer English23

language learners, and far fewer newcomers to24

the United States. Also Truman is more less25
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crowded than Columbus, and by the way thank1

you for the - - . You played out the bright2

girl [phonetic] according to our footprint here,3

we - - to ensure what we should have. So we4

have to be on a triple schedule instead of a5

single schedule, which does affect so much in a6

community.7

Finally the most significance difference is8

that we have almost twice the number - -9

percentage of economically disadvantaged10

students. And I know that the Department of11

Education has frequently said that good teaching12

could overcome poverty, it's not an issue. And13

- - I'd like to share with you something I heard14

from my students last week. I had asked them15

why they complete [phonetic] several [phonetic]16

program, - - when they came in the morning and17

here's what they wrote.18

I work most of the time in a restaurant19

through 4 to 10 p.m., I work five days a week,20

from Saturday to Thursday, I'm off on Sunday and21

Monday. I'm work from 4 p.m. to 11 p.m. I work22

after school every day, I start work at 4 and23

until 12. When I get home I go to sleep, I get24

tired and that's why I can't do my homework.25
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I work at the - - Thursday through Sunday1

and sometimes other days, it depends on how busy2

it is. The reason why I don't do homework is3

because I work from 5 to 11 p.m. Because I work4

five hours a day and on the weekend all day, I5

kind [phonetic] of do administration [phonetic]6

of T.B. [phonetic] - - hospital.7

The reason why I sometimes don't do homework8

is because I work from 5 p.m. to 11 o'clock, and9

I feel tired when I get home.10

I didn't do [phonetic] my homework because I11

work, I have a little job. I work after school12

in the Bronx. I only work in the Bronx two13

days, Monday and Thursday, and I had my birthday14

Wednesday. Also I have another job in the15

Dockers [phonetic] where I work Thursday,16

Friday, Saturday and Sunday.17

Monday, Thursday, Tuesday and Friday, I work18

from 4 to 10.30, sometimes till 11.30. On19

Saturday I work from 9 a.m. to 10.30 p.m., on20

Sunday I work from 11 a.m. to 9.30 p.m.21

I recently lost a brother, and I don't live22

in -- in my own home. I'm staying with my23

grandparents and live with her [phonetic]24

family. It's been so crowded, I haven't really25
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been able to do my homework, it's just not1

peaceful [phonetic].2

I'm not doing my homework because sometimes3

I'm tired because - - my mother - - and so4

that's why my students - - And I hope that5

you'll consider poverty as a factor. It does6

affect [phonetic] their ability to do homework.7

Thank you very much.8

[applause]9

MR. BETHEL: - - it's clear that none of the10

speakers have written comments with them, if11

you'd like to - - afterwards or after this12

evening - - . Mr. - -13

MALE VOICE: First of all, I would like to14

thank the crowd - - thank you for coming to15

support us - - Christopher Columbus High School.16

Thank you.17

[applause]18

MALE VOICE: - - this is what - - we can't -19

- because we're underfunded, we don't have20

money. Kids [phonetic] every year Department of21

Education is taking money away from us22

[phonetic]23

MR. BETHEL: All the time [phonetic]24

[applause]25
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MALE VOICE: Every year the Department of1

Education has been taking money away from us,2

taking away from our dreams, our future. How do3

you expect us to compete against other schools4

when we don’t have the money? You're simply --5

simply throwing us out already, you're just6

making -- you're just throwing us - - . If - -7

money and make us to charter school - - may8

begin to compete against other schools and our9

graduation rate will be higher - - .10

So what do you expect from us, you're --11

you're - you simply thrown us in the street, you12

know, we don't have any clothes to wear and13

you're just letting us out there, and it's not -14

- it's not fair to Christopher Columbus, or to15

any school - - especially me as a - - I came16

here, I didn't know a word of English, you know,17

they took me to me to a class and they expected18

me to learn English, you know.19

The first two, three weeks, I was just in20

class staring at the board because I didn't know21

anything. Slowly, slowly, I learned a couple of22

words from school and I started making -- learn23

how to make a sentence, how to make essay, and -24

- you guys - - which we need, especially - -25
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[applause]1

MALE VOICE: Many schools here, - - you2

know, how do you expect us to succeed, tell me.3

Can you -- can we succeed without that funding,4

can schools survive without - - that's what it's5

coming down to. You guys are not doing that for6

us, you're not. You say, "Ooh, you guys are - -7

you guys your teachers - - ". It's not our8

teachers fault because you guys - -9

[applause]10

MR. BETHEL: If there -- there are questions11

that are raised during the public comments,12

there will be an opportunity during the question13

and answer for us to try and address some of14

them. But I would like to try - - everybody - -15

so everybody has a chance to speak. - -16

MR. TANGI [phonetic]: My name if Tangi, I'm17

a Senior, and as a Senior I - - saves lives - -18

to dozens of scholarships. - - this school a19

failing [phonetic] school, would have - - . In20

three and a half -- in three and a half years,21

I've learned enough to be the top of the class--22

[applause]23

MR. TANGI: --do the - - national - -24

society--25
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[applause]1

MR. TANGI: --and also - - the volleyball2

team and the soccer team--3

[applause]4

MR. TANGI: In one year -- this is the5

surprising part, in one year the DOE has learned6

nothing.7

[laughter]8

[applause]9

MR. TANGI: But I have - - I came in the10

middle of the year, I was rejected by several11

high schools - -12

[applause]13

MR. TANGI: - - he's got all the time14

[phonetic], I think as [phonetic] -- what I15

think is -- I think that - - is money--16

[applause]17

MR. TANGI: that's not the name - -18

[laughter]19

MR. TANGI: - - it isn't - - community,20

because closing the school would be - - good21

step towards - - socio-economic catastrophe22

because as the schools close down, more and more23

young men will be prone to drugs, violence,24

gangs, - - this school is serving this -- the25
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community by keeping us students engaged.1

Let's talk about the academics last time2

[phonetic]. The DOE blames the teachers, every3

time it's the teachers, or [phonetic] the4

students, the teachers or [phonetic] the5

students. Let me say something, there's nothing6

wrong with the teachers.7

I've been so [phonetic] prepared by the8

teachers that during summer I had a college9

course at - - and I - - the best students from10

best schools - -11

[applause]12

MR. TANGI: --and let me tell you something,13

I was able to get the highest grades [phonetic]14

in midterms, - - and - -15

[applause]16

FEMALE VOICE: Thank you Columbus for17

adopting me since September. Karen Armstrong is18

world-famous author of compared religion and she19

speaks in engagements about public discourse,20

about nights like tonight.21

She - - and reminds us that you engage in22

discourse, in [phonetic] hearing, which is what23

we're doing right now, we're in a hearing, is to24

reach and let the hearing change you.25
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No one here - - it may appear you can't1

seem to change the Department of Education, but2

remember that closed minds are closed ears to3

stop you from fully expressing what you -- what4

this community knows is true.5

Christopher Columbus is a - - successful6

school because of its CEO. An effective CEO7

must articulate long-term vision, Ms. Puentes8

progressive, charter-conversion plan is that9

vision.10

A CEO must lead and manage the execution of11

a plan, while continuing to successfully serve12

the English language learners, children on the13

Autism [phonetic] specter [phonetic], Honor14

students, vocational students, and over-the-15

counter students, others [phonetic] from16

[phonetic] schools thrown away like trash.17

Ms. Puentes' rebuts [phonetic] a scarlet18

[phonetic] deed [phonetic], keeps her - - ,19

customizes programming, puts up a charter20

prospectus and manages to stay married21

[phonetic].22

A CEO must inspire creativity and drive23

relentlessly. According to - - one of our24

biggest fans, "Your team is your greatest25
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asset".1

A CEO must maintain internal focus, external2

objectivity, never to forget the - - triangle,3

students, teachers, graduating good citizens.4

Allow us to change you DOE, allow us to educate5

you. Christopher Columbus plans to continue,6

succeeding into the next decade, and beyond.7

[applause]8

MR. BETHEL: Thank you Mr. - -9

MALE VOICE: Thank you, I'm here to speak10

about the - - school. A budget cut over the11

past two school years of approximately 4,000 per12

child, a budget that [phonetic] would not allow13

us to hire a teacher for every classroom or a14

school -- or in school or in September.15

We're five positions short, it took over a16

month to get a loan and get some money to our17

special aid population, in order to hire18

teachers, leaving our classes to the ATR's19

[phonetic] and substitutes -- a mix [phonetic]20

on that.21

DOE had sent - had sent us students who were22

turned away by numerous schools because they had23

characteristics of students who would produce24

negative data such as low 8th Grade scores, poor25
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credit accumulation, poor attendance rates,1

lack of - - scores.2

We welcomed them while we had -- while you3

had forgotten that we took them in, this is our4

accountability. Their historic problems are not5

ours.6

In addition to that because - - I really7

think you owe this community an apology because8

at the beginning of your speech you intimated9

that this has not become a - - school, charter10

school nobody coming in. - - Columbus11

conversion, instead of lying to the immigrant12

parents who you've sent to this school without13

telling them your intentions in the first place,14

allowing their credit scores to - -15

[applause]16

MR. BETHEL: - - 11, 13, 15, 17 and 19 to17

line up on the side. Tanya Credo [phonetic],18

Kay Pinto [phonetic], Kimberley Devine, - - .19

Ms. Rosmond [phonetic].20

MS. MORAINE ROSMOND [phonetic]: Good21

evening, my name is Moraine Rosmond, this is my22

35th year teaching, the past 18 here at23

Columbus.24

I'm a special education teacher and as such,25
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I'm very concerned about what would happen if1

my -- to my kids and others like them. Because2

school coming in here will allow to select their3

students. Why would they choose students who4

would bring down their scores? We have some5

terrific programs for students who do not excel6

in academia.7

- - campus, we had two work-study programs,8

one at a topnotch daycare center, and another at9

a Hebrew [phonetic] home in Riverdale10

[phonetic].11

I was -- had been admired [phonetic] at12

those facilities. We also have students who13

were sent to - - high school, - - their day to14

their specific skills and then - -15

certification.16

This school has it's - - programs, - -17

cooking, computer and the arts. This team18

professionals including [phonetic] have a19

fabulous - - staff, trying to make sure these -20

- will have meaningful - - on their ability21

levels when they graduate.22

My colleague, Steve Cascarilla [phonetic],23

just described some of the excuses - - the DOE24

has given us. - - do not resist [phonetic]25
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education just now, I have a - - my daughter -1

-I was able to attend school with her and - -2

classes in progress. As I - - down the American3

flag - - for every student. I'm certain that4

each classroom - - attached to the wall and - -5

fixed to the ceiling and - - .6

I asked my daughter's co-teacher who speaks7

excellent English, is this school - - new8

technology, or they - - . She responded that9

all schools - - on the mainland, as well as the10

small islands had been equipped with this new11

technology.12

That is an example of a system where a13

country that really cares to serve their young14

citizens -- to make sure their young citizens15

get the best education possible.16

[applause]17

MS. ROSMOND: - - that South Korea is18

soaring to the top of the economic charts.19

Remember, only one out of six new schools do20

better than schools that are in place. We have21

programs that work, we have heart, - - real22

support we need.23

[applause]24

MR. BETHEL: - - ask numbers 12 to 20 to25
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line up on the side - - . Joshua Kapur1

[phonetic], Karen Eady [phonetic], Raphael Pena2

[phonetic], Angelica Hernandez [phonetic], and -3

- .4

MS. NATALIA: Good evening ladies and5

gentlemen, my name's Natalia and I'm a senior at6

Christopher Columbus.7

[applause]8

MS. NATALIA: I had a speech prepared but I9

really - - I may seem like - - to come here but10

to tell you the truth, I really love the school,11

speaking from the heart, and I'm really nervous12

so don't mind the tears because - - .13

I don't see what is wrong with the school, I14

really don't. There can be teachers - - , I15

have - - today and I'm doing what I have to do16

to graduate. They see me messing up and17

automatically I have to be seen by the guidance18

counselor, - - or the Dean which automatically19

send a note saying they need to see me and it's20

only that I need to do.21

My - - and they provided - - just because, -22

- at least once, or anything. These people are23

like our family, the teachers are like our24

parents, they vouch [phonetic] for us, the look25
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out for us. - - security guards, if you try1

to do anything to the school - - phasing it or2

anything will reopen the door. The school isn't3

going to be overcrowded, people are going to go4

out of jobs. You wouldn't want that to happen5

to you, put yourself in our shoes. If you get6

to be - - be happy to know that they're going to7

be out of a job.8

You put food on the table in your house,9

don't you? What is your kids - - they're10

hungry, and you don't have - - pay for it11

because you're out of a job.12

[applause]13

MR. ROSMOND: - - have a job. Money really14

does everything, it really does surround on15

others, so why do teachers get money to the16

school - - you want us to be better? You need17

to support us as well as anybody else who - -18

support us.19

[applause]20

MS. ROSMOND: I don't work at the school21

because they - - they care about -- they want to22

me run [phonetic] they're on my aisle for my23

graduation. They want to me to go to my senior24

trip, they want everybody else to be able to do25
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what they have to do, so be happy - - . You1

can't leave school with a high [phonetic]2

diploma, can you?3

- - public and do anything, so - - what is4

going to happen? We're not going to have any5

jobs or anything, we need the school to stay6

open because everybody here is supporting - -7

family, and that is a very big thing to8

everybody. You wouldn't - - that family, would9

you? Neither would us.10

[applause]11

MALE VOICE: - - present both -- represent -12

- Christopher Columbus High School.13

[applause]14

MALE VOICE: And first, before I get started15

on my speech I want to ask, you the Department16

of Education the following question, and that17

question only. And that question is what18

possibly could you be thinking bringing a - -19

[applause]20

MALE VOICE: Now, onto the matter at hand.21

In all likelihood, Columbus High School is one22

of the most respected and appreciated schools in23

this community. The 73-year history,24

recognition and right of learning will be25
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extinguished forever because of the cowardice1

and greed from you guys - - city Department of2

Education.3

You will be depriving me and thousands of4

other students just like me a school that5

academically prepares you and provides students6

with holistic wellness.7

[applause]8

MALE VOICE: And gone forever will be the9

bonds which we share with each other. This will10

become an educational wasteland.11

[applause]12

MALE VOICE: So I do not approve closing13

down Christopher Columbus High School because14

the people here, past, present, and the future,15

do not deserve it.16

[applause]17

MALE VOICE: Thank you very much.18

[applause]19

FEMALE VOICE: Most of the things that I20

wanted to say are already expressed by most21

other people. One big question I have is how do22

you people sleep at night, I hope you can live23

with yourselves, I don't know how you can do24

something like this for a living, deciding a25
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fate of schools, deciding a fate - - future1

generations and deciding the fate of teachers.2

These people come in day after day and work3

against circumstances that nobody else would4

want to deal with, and yet they keep coming5

back. They come back day after day and year6

after year, and try to do something with our7

youth.8

And they - - more kids on them, not enough9

classrooms, no funds, what are they supposed to10

work with? I've never seen so many people do so11

much with so little for so many, and ask for12

such little in return, and this is how we thank13

them for the job that they're doing?14

[applause]15

FEMALE VOICE: - - I don't know - - but16

there is something I do know, these people17

should be praised for the work that they do.18

They've taken children like mine that were19

failing wretches and turning them into children20

that can pass - - and look like they're actually21

going to get into college and be successful, and22

productive members of society. You have to23

thank them for that.24

And you know the thing is, how dare anyone -25
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- how dare anyone demean a child, a child's a1

human being. We have a responsibility to them,2

our responsibility is to them and to guide them.3

How dare you tell them that they are4

meaningless, that they mean nothing, and that5

they're not important, because that's the very6

message that you're sending them by telling them7

that they don't need a school to go to.8

[applause]9

FEMALE VOICE: School is not important, they10

are not important. We do not want to return to11

the place where they had no place to go and12

nothing to do but to get into trouble. For the13

last 20 years we've been teaching our youth that14

they can be the future, they can do things, they15

can achieve things, and now you want to take16

that away from them?17

Where are you going to send them if they18

close here and other schools? Where are they19

going to go? To the streets, where are parents20

going to go? They're going to have to stop21

working, they're going to have send their kids -22

- move away with them.23

We move -- we move good quality people, and24

we lose entire generations. I don't know - -25
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but you cannot close those schools, you1

cannot. You have to think of the children - -2

[applause]3

FEMALE VOICE: Hi, name's Karen - - and - -4

to school for about 19, 20 years. And I would5

just like to thank a few people for the6

renovation that they have done in our library.7

I'd like to thank all the students that were8

involved, teachers, my - - came from New York9

City Library Service, Ms. Puentes our Principal,10

and all the other staff and community members11

that helped plan the renovation of our library.12

And we planned this renovation for at least13

five, maybe ten years, it seemed like forever.14

We worked so hard on it, and now we have like a15

21st century library - - new floor and so many16

new computers, and it's so unjust to just have17

everyone work for this and it closes down.18

That's so unfair.19

- - do not deserve this. We have - - , we20

have 70 programs going on there and our Columbus21

students deserve to continue to use our services22

and to participate. We have -- generally we23

have - - then we have -- we're one of 20 schools24

chosen to be part of - - survivors coming over25

http://www.pdfpdf.com


52

to this country to speak about their1

experiences - - great program, we done two years2

now.3

Most we have -- coming up to Black History4

Month, we have poetry, plays -- special play - -5

in the auditorium. We also - - Columbus6

students, one of the classes - - about 25 to 307

kids to our beautiful country and - - one of8

them is going to represent Columbus in a contest9

that's coming up.10

We also have -- so those and other things.11

We have authors coming to our school, to - -12

Columbus need to have this experience, okay? -13

- databases of course, we're training students14

to use and that's for the successful - - our15

students need this.16

I also just wanted to make another point17

about what's happening to students - - and18

statistics, that maybe you're not aware of. But19

the DOE official visiting Columbus recently told20

parents that students who close schools actually21

do better when the school closes, and that is22

not true. This - - is based on DOE's own23

statistics does not support this.24

We took a look at what happened to the25
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volumes of students who should graduated - -1

high school - - students entering each of the2

scores for 2002, with - - percentage of students3

who were graduating after seven years was 17.6%4

- - and 29.5 - - . And this is the final class5

of these two years, the city-wide average6

graduation rate for that year was 75.5% and7

really it's important to note that the same8

report, the DOE's - - Columbus graduated 77.4%9

of its students, way above the city average,10

okay?11

[applause]12

FEMALE VOICE: So let's - - okay to - - our13

school and - - it's totally unjust to close up14

on this, to close - - a new library and it's15

just -- it's just - -16

[applause]17

MR. BETHEL: Kimberley18

MS. KIMBERLEY DEVINE: Hi, my name is19

Kimberley Devine, I'm 16 and I'm part of the - -20

and if you close Columbus, I can't - - so what's21

this, - - fact that you care, caring how? You22

can't, I'm - - me dead, dead in my head,23

because everything you said was a lie, that you24

- - mine, - - my mind, why would you do that, -25
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- every day a shame, just a shame, now you1

work how to say my name.2

But you even remember me, do remember me?3

Ha, please don't lie to me, - - saying you care,4

that it's possible - - it's just a lie, - - I5

can read your mind, for once your life, why is6

that? - - you told the teachers - -7

[applause]8

MR. BETHEL: - -9

MR. RAPHAEL PINO PINOPIO [phonetic]: So my10

name is Raphael Pino Pinopio, I just want to say11

thank you for - - supposed to be the leader of12

the city, you're supposed to actually - -13

leadership and - - control of the education14

system? Too bad - - how many times have we15

actually reached out to him, has he ever16

actually come to visit to the community to17

speak, has he ever?18

Why isn't he here, under 28 - - is he going19

to be here? Who knows, I doubt he is though.20

Also - - you know, as you guys know - - she's21

the -- she's like a CEO - - no experience22

whatsoever because her education, yet, yet,23

somehow, somehow, she's the chancellor of the24

education system.25
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She has no experience at all when it comes1

to education, she has none at all - - she has no2

experience as a teacher, as a principal, she has3

none at all, ever, ever - - administration,4

inside of a school, yet she's able to become5

chancellor of the education system.6

[applause]7

If you ask, if you ask me, if you ask me, -8

- it seems to be that right now, it seems to be9

that the education system around the country,10

not just in the city, not just the Bronx, but11

everywhere, it seems to be under attack.12

If you - - it's everywhere. They're cutting13

the education system, they're cutting the14

budget, this is ridiculous, this is absolutely15

ridiculous. And it is completely absurd when it16

comes to this free market country, this17

capitalist - - country to actually to even try18

to advertise the education system.19

[applause]20

MR. PINO: When it comes to education, an21

education is - - right for the people, for the22

people, it's for the people. So you're going to23

privatize, so when you come to Columbus, you24

want to close it down, you want to convert it25
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but - - the DOE - - and spoken to the students1

about what is that -- what is that - - if it was2

actually a conversion.3

People are worried about the next year in4

Columbus when we should, we actually really,5

really should. But then again, when it comes to6

charter school - - granted a spa - - private7

education, right? - - on top of that, when it8

comes to global, the new governor, we actually9

won the lawsuit - - from the Council of10

Educational -- the council - - provide11

education, we won a lawsuit, which actually12

proves that we won billions and billions of13

dollars, that's supposed to go to the education14

system.15

But thanks to our new governor, that is not16

going to the public education system. Instead,17

they do like private charter to a public space,18

to a public environment. That is space -- that19

is money taken away from the public sector, that20

is money taken away from our pockets, from our21

parents, from the community. We put these22

people here, because of us - - it is a shame - -23

[applause]24

MR. PINO: - - experience itself should be25

http://www.pdfpdf.com


57

feared by the youth. So I ask you this, what1

are you going to do about it, what are you going2

to do when they take money from the public3

sector and they put it in the private sector.4

What are you going to do - -5

[applause]6

MR. VINCE MYLES TURNER [phonetic]: Thank7

you, my name is Vince Myles Turner. I've been -8

- I've been a teacher here for about 20 years, -9

- from about 30 and really my entire lifetime in10

the private sector was all sweaty as a teacher.11

The gentleman talks about Ms. Black12

[phonetic], I hadn't made that my idea but I13

just thought I might pass on a suggestion you14

might want to bring to her.15

Chancellor's Regulation of A421 defines16

verbal abuse as anything that tends to cause17

physical and mental distress of a child. Now18

since - - as a teacher - - why is our classroom19

so overcrowded? And she made the same remark in20

the class that she - - parents, well, why don't21

we take our - - birth control? She'd be brought22

up on charges, taken out of her classroom - -23

[applause]24

MR. TURNER: - - said my teacher said why25
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don't we use birth control? You might get a1

out of control principal who has a vendetta2

against somebody saying, "I want you out of the3

building." Now - - I'll print that for you but I4

just thought I might pass that on as well.5

[applause]6

MR. TURNER: Okay, back to my remarks.7

Sometimes the movies have a lot to tell us,8

there's a movie that certainly down, down, on9

the young folks, Rob Roy [phonetic] and - - to10

get that movie speaking to his young children,11

one of them asks, "Daddy, what is honor?" And12

he responds honor is a gift that a man gets13

himself, and then no one could take away from14

him, but himself."15

And I bring that to your attention for16

several reasons, you're all - - and everybody17

wants to make a living, but it's more difficult18

to make a loss. And I would suggest to you that19

- - this evening, or your colleagues on February20

3rd, you have a legacy of a lifetime that you21

have to answer to yourself. What is your honor?22

I know what mine is, I understand what mine is,23

and you have a challenge to yourself.24

Is your position, is there a fear factor, is25
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there a mortgage to pay, I can only presume.1

But you've heard the evidence, there is no2

reason to close this school. I would suggest3

most strongly as I spoke to you - - past and4

reminded you that the entire - - small school5

was really an effort to make sure my loving6

parents had no interest in the Bush or7

Republican ideas - - .8

But that's another story for another day,9

but now we're going to be eaten by the time10

we've been trying to ride [phonetic], and we can11

all discuss that another time.12

But what you have to do to - - this evening13

ladies and gentlemen, is to ask yourself, "What14

is my honor?" What is my - - , you know what's15

right to you, you can see that. Perhaps the16

movie The Verdict with Paul Newman said it best,17

"What is just, all you need do to believe in18

justice is to act with justice, and justice will19

be given to you."20

You need to act with justice, it's in your21

hearts as you said. Just fulfill it. Do you22

have that courage to actually say to your23

monster, "By the way, if you haven't noticed,24

the bloom is not for Bloomberg, okay?"25
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He's on the way out, - - I think you1

should latch your star to another person because2

if your legacy is what Bloomberg wants you to3

go, outside in the lobby of this building you4

walked through are the names of several dead5

students who gave their lives to their country6

from these very halls. What are you going to do7

with those plaques, put them in the trash?8

[applause]9

MR. TURNER: What are you going to do with10

that - - I'm sorry if I presume too much, but11

after 40 years of teaching, I ask you, because I12

don't know how long - - question, what is your13

honor? Thank you.14

[applause]15

MR. BETHEL: - -16

MS. JULIA HERNANDEZ: Hello, my name is17

Julia Hernandez, and I just want to say that the18

New York State - - that gave the Department of19

Education $700 million on the condition they20

would create more charter schools and close down21

low achieving public schools.22

So I'm going to ask, if you want more23

charter schools, don't use us as an excuse. Why24

don't you use that money to build more schools?25
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You can also use that money to fix our public1

schools and not just throw us away.2

Closing down Christopher Columbus High3

School means every other school in this city4

will be that more overcrowded. Thank you.5

MR. BETHEL: - -6

MS. RHORDA MARTIN [phonetic]: Hi, my name is7

Rhorda Martin, I am - -8

[applause]9

MS. MARTIN: --the building, I spoke last10

year so I'm not going to stay up here too long11

because I don't really know how much it's going12

to help but, these are my students and one of13

the things that I teach them in class is14

accountability.15

You don't go to class, you don't do your16

work, you get probation sheets, we call homes,17

we do whatever we have to do. And then a month18

ago you guys made us sit in a meeting and show19

how we were accountable for increasing the20

statistics at Columbus High School, and we had21

to list all the programs that we implemented and22

show all the different strategies.23

So I want to know when we're invited to the24

meeting when you show your accountability,25
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because if 19 schools are failing, I believe1

that's your fault - -2

[applause]3

MR. BETHEL: Can we have Speakers 21 through4

29 to line on the left side - - , we got5

Rodriguez, Robert Discen, Don March [phonetic]6

and Belinda Brown. Mr. Martin [phonetic].7

MS. ANGORI MARTIN SPECK [phonetic]: Well,8

good night everyone. My name is Angori Martin9

Speck [phonetic], I am not from the Bronx, I was10

- - High School, I'm from - - and the reason why11

I'm here tonight is - - Columbus.12

I am the leader of the - - and we will never13

- - superintendent of the year. You don't know?14

Because you will need to keep this school open,15

that's the reason why.16

[applause]17

You are the mayor of the only - - public18

school as a big adventure. Because it is19

possible that this people are - - this is what I20

want you to do, empower yourself, attract - - ,21

attract attention. - - he can always - - you22

are now in proposal [phonetic].23

[applause]24

MS. MARTIN: - - student, if you need help,25
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see me, because - - nothing takes time like1

the PTA - - we will not sit down with the team2

of people sitting here - - has been said3

tonight. As soon as they leave here - -4

[applause]5

MS. MARTIN: - - public enemy, every time -6

- so empower your job - - school to school, 187

years old - - Christopher Columbus High School8

he had - -9

[applause]10

MS. MARTIN: - - high school, very11

successful, poor teacher, - - you cannot treat12

children like numbers, they're not numbers. - -13

you've got to empower these children, you've got14

to help them, pulling the school down does not15

help a child. Restructure the school, where are16

you going to go to put these children - - tell17

people why you want to close the school, okay?18

And I am telling you, get yourself together,19

go see - -20

[applause]21

MR. BETHEL: - - Speakers 22 to 30 to come22

to - - room, Courtney Miller [phonetic], Robert23

Abram, Bridgit Barnes [phonetic], Liquis Rivera24

[phonetic], and Barbara Hanson.25
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MR. BETHEL: Sir.1

MR. TANFI: Hi, my name is Tanfi, I'm from2

Roosevelt Educational campus. Well, I saw how3

much of a family you guys are here tonight and4

how much -- what the DOE has done to you guys.5

So I just wanted to come here and - -6

[applause]7

MR. TANFI: They're being very deceptive and8

they haven't told you guys that charter schools9

- - as Raphael mentioned earlier up there, it's10

a lottery [phonetic], not everyone gets to --11

you're all -- you're not getting to the spa in12

charter, they taking - - , so it's not as - - as13

you think it is. Also charter schools take14

money away from - - the public sector, is that15

really what you want, invest money in public16

schools?17

Also I just wanted to give out a message to18

the DOE, last year then they wanted to take away19

our - - where were they, were they helping us?20

No. Students had to mobilize, we had to do21

everything - - to win back our metro cards22

[applause]23

MR. TANFI: Maybe they - - and we discovered24

something new, when a student body mobilizes and25
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works together as one, we have power, we have1

a voice, and we intend to use our voice to show2

that we can make a difference. And the DOE3

isn't going to silence us.4

[applause]5

FEMALE VOICE: Thank you - - . I contacted6

Ms. Puentes two weeks ago, I am - - for 2002 and7

I contacted her because I was moving back to New8

York City area, I'd been teaching in Buffalo,9

New York, which I don't know if you know the10

graduation rate - - high school.11

I'd been teaching in the detention center12

and the courts - - Buffalo, New York. And - -13

back to New York I wanted to contact Ms. Puentes14

to see if I can get back to my school and help15

out here, and she told me that you guys were16

deciding to close, it broke my heart.17

Looking back to 2002, my mother put me out18

my senior year of high school. I remember going19

to Ms. Puentes office and she was the assistant20

principal - - crying, because I didn’t know21

where I was going to stay, if I was going to22

college, or how I was going to make money.23

My first job was Christopher Columbus High24

School in the assistant principal office.25

http://www.pdfpdf.com


66

[applause]1

FEMALE VOICE: - - college - - Bachelors in2

Political Science. I've been teaching in3

Buffalo, New York and also been taking my other4

talents in music, - - my first solo. - -5

singing, and now I'm writing music for a lot of6

famous artists in the industry rap and R&B, and7

I got my - - here, at Columbus.8

Teaching - - you do not close the school,9

that is not how to solve the problem. This10

school has always been the school in the Bronx11

that was the dumping ground. My parents went12

here, I went here, this has always been the13

dumping ground for the Bronx. So what are you14

going to do with those kids, those kids who15

don't - - where are you going to send them?16

I came back here because I wanted to help17

these kids and - - when no one had faith in me,18

this school had faith in me.19

[applause]20

FEMALE VOICE: - - not live with my mother.21

Now I'm - - around my world singing - -22

[applause]23

FEMALE VOICE: - - potential equal - - Thank24

you.25
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MR. BETHEL: - -1

MALE VOICE: - - and I go to - - College, I2

didn't graduate from Columbus High School but -3

- . So by a show of hands, raise your hands if4

you want children - - . All right, put your5

hands down. By a show of hands how many of you6

want students that - - to go to this school.7

How do you expect to go to the school is the8

only option we have is - - ? We constantly hear9

that the Department of Education needs to be run10

out of the business, we don't need CEO's, we11

don't run a business, we need principals, we12

need teachers, and those are - -13

[applause]14

MALE VOICE: The New York Times has written15

an article last week related to that, the New16

York Times - - an article last week that said17

Department of Education had already decisions on18

schools like Columbus to phase you our already.19

So they made the decision before they had a20

hearing and a home.21

[crowd response]22

MALE VOICE: You the Department of Education23

- - superintendent, and - - their positions as24

well, need to go back to the Department of25
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Education, to the rest of - - and say Columbus1

is staying open2

[applause]3

MALE VOICE: They need to allocate more - -4

to the band that was just playing for you, to5

the step team, to the students outside - - I6

believe I can fly--7

[applause]8

MALE VOICE: --they believe they can fly but9

you can't take their wings away. We cannot fly10

if you take our wings away.11

[applause]12

MALE VOICE: So on a final assault, stop13

trying to tell the students that they have to14

go, that they have to leave. The decision is15

not up to you, the decision is up to us.16

[applause]17

MALE VOICE: By next year student - - might18

be taken away, by next year everyone needs to19

graduate with a registered [phonetic] diploma,20

by next year other schools will be shut down, so21

maybe about five to six hundred students will be22

in this building.23

Look at what's happening next year, and the24

only alternative we have to offer them is we'll25
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just stay in the building and we can become a1

charter school, which is great, but we're taking2

money away from public schools and some students3

can only get - - sorry guys.4

[applause]5

MALE VOICE: It's not right.6

[applause]7

MR. BETHEL: Mr. - - isn't here tonight but8

Mr. Paul [phonetic] can read his statement on9

his behalf.10

MR. PAUL: - - member of the Christopher11

Columbus Hall of Fame couldn't be here but sent12

me this testimony and asked me to read it for13

him.14

My name's Rod Laver [phonetic] and I'm a15

about graduate of Christopher Columbus High16

School, graduating in June 1956--17

[applause]18

MR. PAUL: From Columbus, I - - 28 years in19

public life and I've been elected three times to20

the New York State - - from this neighborhood,21

three times as borough president of the Bronx to22

four times as attorney general of the state of23

New York.24

I remember my inauguration president of the25
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Bronx which was held at Christopher Columbus1

High School in January, 1969, attended by Mayor2

- - , the president of the city council - - and3

two members of the Congress, Jonathan - - and4

James Shore [phonetic], as well as many good5

memories of the - - community filling this6

auditorium.7

My four years in Christopher Columbus were8

very happy years, I had - - as outstanding9

teachers and established relationships with10

friends that exist to this very day. When I was11

in Christopher Columbus, we won a city-wide PSA12

[phonetic] - - championship, our basketball team13

featured Jerry Walson [phonetic] who went on to14

star in - - college community MVP award - -15

Madison Square Garden, played in the NBA - -16

basketball coach, one who later became the coach17

of - - University, went on to coach the18

Philadelphia 76ers in the NBA.19

I simply cannot believe that the Department20

of Education is proposing to close down - - very21

historic institution. Without focusing on merit22

and reasoning for the elimination of Columbus I23

cannot fathom the strategic - - of eliminating24

the - - Christopher Columbus High School.25
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If I understand what the Department of1

Education has in mind is to eliminate Columbus2

High School as it's constituted today, and - -3

very same building, why would the Department of4

Education destroy the very valuable asset, the5

good name of Christopher Columbus, and turn away6

from the tens of thousands of its alumni who7

have - - leadership and resources to the future8

operations and programs for the school.9

Why - - thousands of Columbus graduates,10

many who have achieved significant success in11

their - - for the educational program that will12

continue in the building housing Columbus High13

School.14

Who - - conceive that this monumental wonder15

to obliterate the proud heritage and tradition,16

telling thousands of graduates you cannot return17

to your alma mater, donate time or monetary18

contributions to its current student body. No19

leader in America is this - - type of decision20

making -- taking place.21

How could it be happening in the great city22

of New York? - - to madness. Columbus' sons,23

we must unite and stop this unimaginable24

stupidity. Christopher Columbus High School - -25
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nonsensical death, we must save it's children1

who will make our voices heard.2

We must demonstrate to protest this3

unthinkable act of treachery [phonetic], we must4

demand a rational accounting for this5

inconsiderate proposal.6

Christopher Columbus High School - - each7

year to the annual Columbus Day parade must8

remain as the main institution for all to9

remember and revere. Thanks - -10

[applause]11

MR. BETHEL: - -12

MR. ROBERT DISCEN: My name is Robert13

Discen, I am - - and president for councils for14

union. I've been in education for 41 years, - -15

if there was one place that I would rather be16

tonight, it's city of New York City.17

Because you could triple my salary to - -18

listen to this and go back your bosses and to19

your perceptions and your statistics - - because20

the will of the community and the will of these21

young people, who certainly aren't failing, if22

they're out here at night fighting for the23

school they believe in.24

So that is for you, a moral dilemma that I25
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hope you find some way to live with and1

resolve. How many of you have been witness to2

what the - - community has done in this school?3

I came here when this place was founded, this4

auditorium was filled with kids who could not5

get into a class, there was just no room for6

them.7

Our class, which was made up of all the gang8

leaders in this building, and behind that street9

was the only place that we could meet. Three10

years later, those kids, all failing, all gang-11

affiliated and all children, came under this - -12

from - - . They invested in us and - - to see13

the return on the investment.14

The principal and guidance counselors15

presented them with statistics. Forty-five of16

those kids graduated on time, 45 of those kids17

were attending all their classes, 45 of those18

kids - - . What does that tell you? That even19

- - as the worst kids, in the right environment20

will - - .21

Our track record over the next 36 years, if22

the kids are on a program, we've never gone23

below 85% graduation rate, and that holds true24

here.25
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Here's - - Christopher Columbus, to Lisa1

Puentes and every kid in this building, if you2

accept this proposal as a charter school, we'll3

make sure you offer curriculum - - guarantee4

that will graduate 85% of these kids in a5

heartbeat.6

So I ask you when you leave here, find some7

moral fiber, find some high ground, and report8

back what you've seen instead of holding up --9

you know they say the funny thing about10

statistics, statistics don’t lie, but liars use11

statistics.12

[applause]13

MALE VOICE: - - and I'd like to - - last14

month and I said to him that I was attending15

Columbus at the same time that he was attending16

- - High School. And that I would know more of17

what to have to say - - high school you are18

graduating from, but it doesn’t exist anymore -19

- and yet if this proposal can close my alma20

mater, Christopher Columbus, - - .21

The fact of the matter is this school - -22

long time schools that has so much riches - -23

years but more of it, people are proposing to24

close. You have no right to mess with someone's25
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history, the New York City public school1

system goes back to the middle of the 19th2

century - - 160 years.3

- - tiny blip on the radar screen, - - take4

away the history of so many places - - 1988 to5

the 15th anniversary of this school - - then6

State Senator - - to sign in, everybody was7

dressed up in - - signatures of people, looking8

for the same people to sign again - - 60th9

anniversary here in the school in '98 or '99, -10

- what do you want to deprive so many people of11

their history, so many - - helping this school12

or other schools throughout the city?13

It is a responsibility of the Department of14

Education to the schools struggling, and the15

school with a high percentage of special needs16

students, to pour every resource you have into17

that school and to - - roll up your sleeves and18

help, not stand on the sidelines with your arms19

folded and - - placed up.20

His predecessor - - had a chance - - and21

they did that. You people just want to close22

these schools and it's simply immoral.23

[applause]24

MR. BETHEL: - - Donald March [phonetic] ,25

http://www.pdfpdf.com


76

Donald March here?1

MR. DONALD MARCH: The gentleman that just2

spoke before me is - - He did not lie to you,3

that curtain is drawn, there's 63 different4

languages spoken behind that curtain which all5

display different cultures. I - - broker the6

peace, I was the one that - - lived on this7

school, - - that's a sidewall issue.8

That same chorus that he talked about, I was9

able to get to college, that same class was also10

the same class that brought the council11

community program, which is the same, same12

correctional facility - - their anti-gang13

violence program.14

That program is now gone state wide. That15

was born right here in this building.16

When you stand there and you try to17

understand what all this is, I think you need to18

understand, you need to discover why Columbus19

is.20

It's not what you think it is, it's not21

statistics and abstracts, it's a hell of lot22

moral foundation, and I'm going to ask you23

tonight to please not exhume the bodies of all24

of the people that went to this school, who have25
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found attachments and affection to and1

reasoning that went here. Do not exhume the2

bodies and cause the pain that that can cause3

us.4

One of the most famous mayors in the City of5

New York who read comics to the children with6

the radio - - broadcast - - the newspapers were7

on strike was a mayor named Fiorello La Guardia.8

Fiorello La Guardia is buried just down the road9

in Woodlawn Cemetery, does it matter?10

It doesn't say I was the mayor of the City11

of New York. You know what is says on his12

tombstone? It says friend and humanitarian,13

that will never be Michael J. Bloomberg's14

epitaph.15

[applause]16

MR. MARCH: What you do here tonight and17

what you do in Brooklyn [phonetic], I ask you to18

take due prudence in what you do, because this19

very auditorium two years ago this night - - and20

it makes me be awed as the 44th president of the21

United States was inaugurated and we watched it22

on this large screen.23

We watched it all, and we said we have hope,24

we have change, we did not vote with our pain,25
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and our hands, and our backs, and the labor of1

the country behind that. We did not vote for2

free X-boxes and - - but we will tell you this,3

Columbus - - will it become a charter school,4

we're willing to work with you.5

But please, do not make us secede from the6

Board of Education, in order for us to succeed.7

MR. BETHEL: Thank you Mr. - -8

[applause]9

MR. MARCH: One last thing, what you do and10

what you think, may God save the Republic.11

[applause]12

MR. BETHEL: - -13

MR. LIQUIS RIVERA [phonetic]: Good evening,14

I'm glad the DOE - - hearing tonight, but I have15

-- I have a question. Are you really listening16

or have you already decided? No one on that17

panel impresses me, people that impress me are18

the teachers in the classrooms.19

[applause]20

MR. RIVERA: My name is Liquis Rivera, I21

came here tonight because I oppose the proposal22

to close Christopher Columbus High School.23

As an alumni of Christopher Columbus High24

School, class of 2004, I speak proudly of the25
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education I received as a student here.1

Closing Christopher Columbus High School and2

replacing it, has been the goal and focus of DOE3

officials for several years now.4

The school has been portrayed to the5

outsiders as a low performing school through6

Department of Education press releases. I do7

not recall press releases offering suggestions,8

support, professional development - - showcasing9

best products in that school - - high population10

and special education - - students to be11

implemented at Christopher Columbus High School.12

I believe that had DOE officials stepped in13

- - opportunities to be educated at Columbus14

High School, we would be hearing about the15

successes of the students and school as a whole.16

I cannot begin to imagine how parents, students,17

teachers and - - cannot be focusing on the18

education solely for the past few years, all the19

negative attention this school has been20

receiving.21

The teachers here are diligent, caring, and22

most of all - - difficulties this country faces.23

I would also like to add the school's suggestion24

to replace Columbus High School would be - -25
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school.1

So if I'm a parent or child who was in2

special-ed or - - student, my child attempts to3

attend that school, which happens to be in my4

community becomes rather unlikely. Let's face5

it, anyone who creates a school that accepts the6

best - - the best results.7

But that does not address the issue of low-8

performing students, they will not disappear, -9

- existing schools, incorporate best practices,10

and help produce kids that see [phonetic].11

So again as a proud alumnus of Columbus High12

School, I oppose your proposal. The community13

is not satisfied with this decision, which is14

evident by us being here tonight. And I believe15

the DOE officials are simply taking the simple16

way out, and I believe the decision should be17

reconsidered. Thank you.18

[applause]19

MR. BETHEL: Ms. Brown - -20

MS. BELINDA BROWN: My name is Belinda21

Brown, I'm an active parent and a concerned22

resident of this community. I'm a member of23

Christopher Columbus' leadership team, I'm a24

part of the New York school -- New York City25
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Board of Ed, and I'm a resident of the Bronx1

for 43 years.2

My daughter is a senior here, she's been to3

numerous schools, she's been to public PSA - -4

in Riverdale, she's been to charter school - - ,5

she's been to Strasburg, Pennsylvania, school6

there, she's been in Our Mercy Lutheran7

[phonetic] in the Bronx, and of all schools my8

daughter has attended, Christopher Columbus High9

School has shown the best results.10

[applause]11

MS. BROWN: Her grades have improved -- her12

grades have improved, she shows more enthusiasm,13

and she's evolved. She's on the leadership team14

- -15

[applause]16

MS. BROWN: I want to say the staff here is17

dedicated and concerned about the future of our18

children, what I'd like the DOE to consider - -19

they do, is to -- the dysfunctional --20

outgrowing dysfunctional society, which includes21

poverty, crime, group homes, and for parents who22

have lost control of our children, which - -23

involved, we also have single parents, I don't24

know if you all know, but 70% of Black Hispanic25
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mothers are single, which is a big factor in1

raising our children. Also the immigration2

population has increased.3

I graduated from John F. Kennedy in '85, and4

comparing notes from my daughter with my notes,5

there has been a large increase in immigration,6

which slows the learning process and lowers the7

grades of schools.8

And I don't think the DOE considers these9

factors at all. I think to close Christopher10

Columbus High School is not the answer, it's11

just passing along the problem in our society,12

because we have systemic problems in our13

society.14

Also, this is another gimmick from Bloomberg15

to make New York City for the elite, and I want16

to thank the staff -- the staff here, and I want17

to thank them so much for helping my daughter18

continue her education, and she is going to19

college, and she does have supportive -- support20

at home, which I think is lacking in our21

community. Thank you.22

[applause]23

MR. BETHEL: We're approaching the end of24

the speaker list, I'd like to ask the remaining25
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speakers to come up to the microphone. On the1

left side, speakers 31 and 33, - - and Shani2

Rodriguez, on the right side, - - Hanson3

[phonetic], Eugene Francis, Sue Rizano4

[phonetic] and Samantha Dixon [phonetic], thank5

you. Ms. Hanson?6

MS. BARBARA HANSON: Good evening, my name7

is Barbara Hanson, and I’m the principal of8

P10X, the District 75 school that is housed in9

Christopher Columbus.10

About 10, 12 years ago P10X decided to start11

an inclusion program and if you know one thing12

about District 75 and our special needs students13

provide all special education school. We intend14

to fight every step of the way to get what we15

have for - - with schools program - - the16

building we're on.17

So I can empathize with Christopher Columbus18

High School, their principal, their staff, and19

the students who wanted to fight for the school20

they have here - - .21

[applause]22

MS. HANSON: About 10, 12 years ago P10X23

came up with the idea of an inclusion program24

towards high school kids, because I had students25
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from Pre-K to the age of 21.1

And the 10 year -- about 10, 12 years ago,2

when we looked for a high school we came to3

Christopher Columbus, and I’ll be very honest4

with you many students don't like to play nice5

in the playground.6

When we came here, and Lisa Puentes who is7

the principal now, took us in with open arms.8

She supported - -9

[applause]10

MS. HANSON: --and it was new, the staff11

were free - - our children, as a lot of people12

out there afraid of special needs kids. And she13

spoke to her staff and she - - said that these14

are children too, and I believe according to law15

all students have a right to education.16

[applause]17

MS. HANSON: So - - Christopher Columbus - -18

they support our children, they nurture them,19

and they - - them. They work with my staff here20

and they became a family, and I just want to21

publicly thank this Lisa and the staff here at22

Christopher Columbus for welcoming my children23

and for the past 10, 12 years having the24

program.25
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I can't tell you how my children have1

exceeded, not only academically but their2

communication skills, and most importantly their3

social skills have increased. You know, the4

whole point of education is to prepare children5

for the future. Our goal is to get them ready6

for secondary education, that’s their potential7

of getting ready for life.8

This program has prepared my children for9

life. I’m ask you to reconsider closing10

Christopher Columbus High School and the family11

that they are, I know that they work very hard12

to continue educating our - - to reach their13

potential.14

And I also ask you to reconsider moving my15

program at this building, to keep my - - as you16

know, for special needs kids it's sometimes17

difficult to have change. So I ask you to18

reconsider to keep P10 within the walls of this19

building. Thank you.20

[applause]21

MR. BETHEL: Mr. Yorkie [phonetic]?22

MR. YORKIE: Good evening everybody, my name23

is Yorkie. I'm a student at - - High School and24

- - . I just want to point out that in the25
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beginning Santiago Taveras - - statistics1

about the - - promise to - - the school.2

And he mentioned that the school received a3

- - for school environment [phonetic], but yet4

31% of the student population said that they5

don't feel safe in the school.6

Maybe it's because and this is one7

perspective I want to discuss. Maybe it’s8

because that the DOE set schools to be - -9

[applause]10

MR. YORKIE: --they don’t understand if we11

don’t want to be searched, we don’t want to be12

touched. On that note I will say it’s time to13

go, - - in the past week and we did have a14

conversation. I just want you to know that - -15

from my school, I’m very sure that most of the16

students here that are still here - -17

[applause]18

MR. YORKIE: --and I just want to end up19

saying, believe it or not, school closure --20

school closure - - it affects students - - .21

Thank you.22

[applause]23

MR. BETHEL: Mr. Francis?24

MALE VOICE: Good evening, my name is Eugene25
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Francis, I'm a professional actor - - with the1

Screen Actors' Guild, and I also - - 2003 - -2

and I am an alumni of Christopher Columbus High3

School.4

[applause]5

MR. FRANCIS: - - in 1998 where I began my6

dream to perform, to become an actor in the7

school - - and first I performed in - - because8

that’s how - - every single day of our lives,9

and - -10

We are fighting for this name, for our11

history, for our legacy, and furthermore, a12

divided house does not stand. You hear in the13

papers and the news every single day, especially14

during the Republicans and the Democrats,15

whatever nonsense that they do.16

- - politicians too much except for that17

gentleman Mr. Klein -- Senator Klein, he’s a big18

- - and I expect - - Christopher Columbus closed19

down.20

[applause]21

MR. FRANCIS: And also know who the decision22

makers are, because clearly they're not Bronx23

guys, because Bronx guys do not run away from24

their problems, and Christopher Columbus--25
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[applause]1

MR. FRANCIS: - - you give us problems, and2

we work to solve them. And Ms. Puentes, I think3

we spoke briefly when I first returned to New4

York in 2007. I will proudly and gladly run any5

art program, any theater company you want to do6

in this beautiful auditorium has been destroyed7

because we need extra space up there, but8

there’s a little beautiful - - .9

[applause]10

MR. FRANCIS: But no budget, any budget, we11

can do something. Board of Ed, stop handcuffing12

this school and let us raise funds. - - the13

most talented people, and I've been around this14

country, and in the Bronx we have the most, we15

had poets, we have - - we have every single form16

of talent in this borough alone, and our history17

proves -- our history, it proves - - yet18

considerably and continually - - but we still --19

we still keep our - - we still stay and we still20

fight, and that’s what I’m asking of you, to21

help us fight or get out of our way.22

[applause]23

MR. FRANCIS: - - into this program, they24

don’t want to be in school, get them out of the25
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kids ways that want to learn. These kids want1

to learn--2

[applause]3

MR. FRANCIS: --let them know the value of4

school and closing this school is not the5

answer. And I want to close up - - Christopher6

Columbus was told by a majority that he could7

not sail around the country, he would fall, the8

majority believes that this school is falling,9

let this be our rally cry, we will not fall--10

[applause]11

MR. FRANCIS: - - I'm from Columbus High12

School and I am from the Bronx, and we will not13

fall.14

[applause]15

CROWD: We won’t fall, we won’t fall, we16

won’t fall, we won’t fall, we won't fall, we17

won't fall, we won't fall--18

MR. BETHEL: Ms. Shani [phonetic]?19

MS. SHANI RODRIGUEZ: Good evening ladies20

and gentlemen, my name is Shani Rodriguez, and I21

represent - - .22

I'm here today to voice my opinion, because23

everybody's entitled to their own opinion. My24

aim is - - you should not close this school25
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down, you should not close my school down, and1

you should not close any of the school down.2

Without school there is no education,3

without education there is no success, without4

no success there is no future, we defend our5

teachers, we prevail to - -6

[applause]7

MS. RODRIGUEZ: - - to be somebody - - any8

single people here is a somebody, you're a9

somebody you don't have to be known as a nobody.10

- - as a nobody.11

Another thing, this school, not just the12

school because I don’t have anybody in this13

school, I came from central campus all the way14

over here to support this school, to support my15

school, to support every other school out there16

that’s going through the same things - -17

You need to find it in your hearts, - - how18

can you close this school down? How can you19

close our school down?20

This is our home away from home, you don’t21

realize that, you have to give us time to learn,22

you have to give us time to become who we want23

to become, you cannot judge our education, you24

cannot judge our knowledge, it takes time to25

http://www.pdfpdf.com


91

learn.1

Give us that time, give us the opportunity,2

let us have that chance, don’t take it away from3

us because of -- because of, excuse me, because4

of numbers or because of anything you hear.5

It’s not fair for us, it’s not fair for - -6

because at the end of the day - - time. We’re7

here to stay whether you like it or not, our8

schools are made for a purpose, let them be9

used.10

[applause]11

MS. RODRIGUEZ: Don’t take them from us - -12

this school made us who we are today, not just13

the school, but every other school out there14

made us who we are, why are you going to, like,15

shut us down? We have dreams to fulfill, let us16

fulfill them.17

Why get in our way, why? - - because you18

made it here, why can’t we make it where we want19

to make it?20

[applause]21

MS. RODRIGUEZ: - - you can't sit there and22

judge us because of things we go through. You23

don’t know what we go through in our household,24

everything that goes on in our household unless25
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it’s in school, understand us, learn our1

problems, be with us, the same way we have to be2

with - - .3

Whether you like it or not, - - we're4

students, so you have to deal with us, because5

we're still young. We're migrants [phonetic] or6

we're not, but we're still human beings, treat7

us like a human being, don’t treat us like - -8

do not treat us like we're nothing, because we9

are something.10

Today I took my English exam, my English and11

I read a quote - - because it is so true. And12

I’m going to end it by saying this, tonight I’m13

16 years old but I can, I know how to hold14

myself and I can - - but it’s not stopping me15

from doing what I want to do, it’s not stopping16

me from becoming what I want to become, it is17

not stopping me from trying to work hard and be18

someone, it’s not stopping me, so they - - stop19

me, no. - - I want to end this by saying all20

those around the school are suffering in a - -21

this school - - in my life - - my English exam22

and I - - so thank you.23

[applause]24

MR. BETHEL: - -25
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MS. SAMANTHA: Hi everybody, my name is1

Christopher Columbus - -2

[applause]3

MS. SAMANTHA: --what is -- you guys are4

here to hear us out, but yet you're texting,5

you’re here to hear us out, you're over there6

sleeping, that's another thing, how do you7

expect us to learn if you - - just to sleep on8

us?9

I would like to - - education - - , okay. I10

would walk around in this school, everybody11

knows me as either Samantha, the cheerleader or12

the singer. I thought I could never be13

anything, anything at all, but thanks to the14

principal who has explained a lot to me--15

[applause]16

MS. SAMANTHA: --thanks to the securities,17

who have made me go to class even though18

sometimes I didn't want to, thanks to my friends19

who were here backing me up because I’m nervous,20

and thanks to every single person that is still21

here today.22

So you all can continue to sleep, you can23

continue to text, I'm going to continue to24

learn.25
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[applause]1

MS. SAMANTHA: - - continue texting,2

continue sleeping, and my friend - - who just3

graduated from here, has another word to day, so4

you all - -5

[applause]6

MR. BETHEL: - - Samantha Dixon?7

MS. SAMANTHA: Yes.8

MR. BETHEL: - - the next one to stand up?9

MS. SAMANTHA: No - - .10

MR. BETHEL: - - I’m sorry, whose our next11

speaker?12

MR. JIMORI: Jimori. I'm really not -- I'm13

not -- I'm not going to say your names because,14

you're still - - Christopher Columbus High15

School - -16

You know, I’ve been listening all day, I saw17

one of the - - sleeping, I saw -- yes, I saw him18

sleeping. So I'd really like - - explain to me19

how my lifestyle - - you know, I still20

graduated, you know, I was the kid that - - for21

life.22

You know, I was so into the streets - - I23

didn’t really have any interest in school, you24

know. For the first two years, I didn’t think25

http://www.pdfpdf.com


95

like, I think I was - - because I was always1

into security, the teachers, you know, parents,2

you know, the whole thing and up till now they3

still have faith in me, like you know, it was4

really like I had to sit down and think about my5

life, you know, and - - you know, - - all the6

time, all the time man, you know - - why are you7

being so lame, you know like, now I’m 18 it8

makes me feel like, you know, I became a man, to9

stay away from my responsibilities and my10

priorities, you know, as an African-American.11

You know, like, I’m a person who - - you12

know and I like to help people that where I came13

from, you know, because I’ve seen, I’ve seen a14

lot of like too much, you know, and I just15

wanted to just say this because, you know, it’s16

been a while, you know.17

Last year 2010 Columbus had a lot of18

graduates, you know, a lot of graduates - - you19

know like, you can take this like a legacy, like20

the school made programs, you know, have faith21

in kids that - - graduating, you know, I’m one22

of them, you know.23

I come back to - - every day just to stay24

out on the streets, you know, just to -- and25
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keep my mind focused just to be mentored1

[phonetic], you know, just to speak to all the2

security, all the teachers, you know, just get a3

point of view, what they went through, how they4

still changed and became a part of Christian5

life to help us, you know, and it's just a shame6

to see, you know, the same people, like the same7

skins, the same skin color, just everything, and8

now you're trying to shut down the school, like9

I can’t even shut down education, and they're in10

prison.11

[applause]12

MR. JIMORI: - - prison is like, it’s not13

helping anybody, you know, it’s just killing14

each other, you know, being enemies and this15

right here is stopping our youth from going to16

prison, you know, - - .17

MR. BETHEL: Time's up - - .18

MR. JIMORI: Can I get a little, like, extra19

two minutes?20

MR. BETHEL: - -21

MR. JIMORI: There’s one thing that I know22

about Columbus, Columbus started three -- three23

or four programs in this school here and, you24

know, I think it’s very creative that they did25
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that because, you know it actually gives the1

youth of this school a more aspiring2

environment, you know, interesting to come to3

school and to have a better way to communicate4

with adults and your peers without saying -- you5

don't have to say the N word, or using negative6

talk, you know, I mean like - - and it changed7

my life, you know, I'm in La Guardia High School8

- - college, you know, and I’m doing Community9

and Criminal Justice.10

At one point I didn't like police, you know,11

and I didn’t like them and now I’m willing to12

work with them, so we can help our youths--13

[applause]14

MR. JIMORI: - -15

FEMALE VOICE: Good evening, thank you all16

for staying, and the one thing I just I had to17

get out of my chair, I'm so exhausted, to say to18

the young people that I’m going to apologize for19

any - - , I can assure you that, you know, this20

is the third time this week I’ve seen - - . So21

I’m going to say I believe that they are very22

dedicated - - here tonight who have heard every23

word you’ve said.24

So I want to make sure you don’t leave this25
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room thinking that in here or that you may1

have seen somebody sleeping, but we did hear2

what you said and we are going to take it back,3

we are going to discuss it further. But I just4

wanted to make sure, please, please, don’t5

misunderstand that we did not hear what you6

said. Thank you.7

MALE VOIE: Thank you. I just want to make8

one more - - still in the auditorium? Okay.9

We’ll now begin the question and answer period -10

- questions that were submitted earlier in the11

evening. There'll be some individual questions12

and others that have been grouped together in13

categories that are represented in the question14

that I ask.15

Any questions not answered here tonight will16

be answered and posted on the website. If you17

have additional questions -- if you have18

additional questions to the conclusion at the19

end of tonight’s proceedings, we ask that you20

direct them to us with your phone number and21

your email address put it on the factsheet, and22

- - the website.23

I’m going to turn the torch over to - -24

Hanford - - the questions and we'll ask them25
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after - - .1

MALE VOICE: Hi everyone. So as Gregg2

Bethel has just mentioned as I read each of3

these questions and provide a response as - -4

said it may take some additional questions from5

the audience - - any additional questions to6

those on that side, so make them - - because our7

mandate is on material - - .8

So I’ll start with the first question. What9

happens to - - rules because corporations10

maintenance is - - .11

I’ll read you the question, it reads as12

follows, what happens to - - if the13

corporation’s funding arm goes financial - - .14

The way I will respond to this question is15

that, because it’s only a misconception, the16

charge supposed to - - they are actually public17

entities funded by public dollars, serving18

public students. They are not run by19

corporations.20

But they are run, unlike the department of21

education hence the district sports. There is22

an independent board of directors that monitors23

how governments to the - - schools and part of24

that government is to watch those financial25
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schools as the tribal school.1

The next question is why are children in2

involved schools set to be based on? So I think3

this question references the fact that there are4

folks who have applied to schools that this year5

would like the schools - - to be phases out.6

As the educational advance teams knows,7

there is an opportunity to the extent which I8

should say, very clear the extent the panel for9

educational policy approves this exam - -10

promise the other students.11

Those students will apply to schools that12

are supposed to be phased out or will be phased13

out, will have a second opportunity as a part of14

our ex-partnership process to re-think the15

process which may have been eligible to remain -16

- as part of that nature and everything.17

We are formerly responsible to citizens.18

The next question is what percentage of special19

need students are currently enrolled - - will be20

allowed to enroll in the new incoming - - .21

I’m not sure the response is fully clarified22

but the scope of the close to phase - - as to23

kind of phases down is not a troubled school, is24

a district school. District schools - - with25
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students, students with IDs, students that1

are in – the students.2

But to be clear it translates to two things3

that’s the same, with the school phasing into4

this building and is not just- -.5

The next question is why would you say that6

school has strong family connections among7

students who attend the school. It’s a8

difficult question and the way I would answer9

that is that’s not - - this is a difficult10

decision for us.11

It not only takes - - we very clearly see12

the emotion in this moment. The decision is13

based upon the necessity of the school not just14

withstanding, you look at all it fits as the - -15

you think about what’s going on inside of the16

school around and the decision is based upon is17

this school - - academic experience for the18

students and families including inside this19

building.20

That is what the decision to close was based21

on. It is not to say that there aren’t personal22

experiences with the student, because I believe23

there are, we believe there are. It’s not to24

say that this is solely the teachers fault or25
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this is solely the kids’ fault, clearly not1

to say this is somebody’s fault.2

This is a very difficult decision, it takes3

real courage if you believe this building and4

the school needs someone who has real5

organization, a new culture that will serve this6

community and does not tend to serve another7

community, is intended – the new school is based8

upon this school. One thing - - this is a - - .9

The next question reads do realize the10

desire with this public - - has already been11

deiced to phase down - - . As noted and as12

noted in the educational - - we are not13

proposing to close the school to try to --.14

This question references to the - - that was15

released last week. In that article it will be16

very clear that the document that was released,17

it’s a confidential document that merely uses -18

- it is a working draft, it made very clear in19

that working draft that these decisions have not20

been made and in fact several of the items that21

were noted in that draft are not actual22

proposals we will forward so there is actual - -23

in that document.24

The article - - very clear that this is a25
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draft and this is something that was1

discussed a while ago and these are not actually2

proposals supposed to as a traditional message.3

The next question reads, thank you - - but4

it’s been asked in the New York Times - - and5

the decision is already been made so.6

Next question is as follows, how is limited7

and spring problem provide the students that --.8

I think is in program, just to clarify, assuming9

that the proposed phase - - as the new option10

for schools – - a limited school program means11

that the only criteria - - school is that12

students, in some way, just students attend13

students fair, attended an opening house or any14

other event related to these schools. There are15

several events over the course of the year.16

In the incident that students haven’t - - in17

these events, they can recharging the school.18

So that is the only criteria no matter what the19

incoming infrastructure --. The only criteria20

is that there is some advance events that are21

knowledgeable to it also.22

The next question reads, when you consider23

that our formal graduation as - - but you also24

consider the challenges, the challenge level of25
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our students based upon your opinion. This1

is one of the most challenging, the single most2

challenged high school in the city.3

What the question is probably on is that the4

focus of the Board is the pure index to evaluate5

schools. Christopher Columbus is one of the6

lowest if not the lowest pure index schools.7

FEMALE VOICE: It the lowest school, the8

lowest pure index school going program - - .9

MALE VOICE: Thanks Christine [phonetic].10

So the way we feel about this is how is that11

school spinning its students. There are12

comparable schools, it’s not to say every school13

is comparable to Christopher Columbus.14

So we have to think about how is this school15

scoring its students. Let me be very clear16

about the progress of the Board, we believe in17

the fair assessment of schools.18

It is not the only assessment that we use to19

make our decision but in that sense we give20

additional credit even just for data to account21

for the fact that students at Christopher22

Columbus had a very challenging calculation.23

So that is to say in essence he gets an24

additional credit which is the fact for a more25
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challenging population. With that additional1

credit this school has consistently ranked at2

the bottom - - based on the progress report, not3

just the graduation but based on the progress4

reports sent forth.5

FEMALE VOICE:6

MALE VOICE: The next question reads, how7

can demands in school be considered low when we8

have documents showing that the - - 1,6009

students who graduated since September 2009, and10

over 1,400 applied for places since September11

2010. Those facts—those aren’t facts, those12

numbers are actual.13

The advertisement hasn’t been used, just14

because a student applies to Christopher15

Columbus does not mean that they were ranked16

highly on their list. So again student’s17

performance are not linked to all schools.18

So if you take the numbers from 2009 as an19

example, while 1,300 students who applied to20

Christopher Columbus as part of this 12 school,21

only 175 were matched, meaning more than 1,20022

out of those 1,400 students had another school23

higher than Christopher Columbus.24

What this means is there has been very low25
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percentage of students making this to perform1

this and transform.2

FEMALE VOICE: This is not true. The school3

gets over 220 placements first choice, over 6004

placements—5

MALE VOICE: Everybody tonight is getting6

tired discussing this process and we are trying7

to make an opportunity here to folks to ask8

questions and for us to try and provide some9

clarification and I don’t want - - .10

Folks had an opportunity to speak, if we11

can’t have the opportunity to answer your12

questions of the proposed process we’ll be13

forced to post responses online and we prefer14

not to do that. So we will ask that you - -15

opportunity to answer your questions in peace.16

Guys, guys I’m sorry. This part of the - -17

because I suppose people still hand questions18

that we’ve been unable to get an opportunity to19

answer and my colleagues felt the same way.20

We are trying to answer questions, even - -21

to give you the answers, we are not saying we -22

- but as we listened to every single person that23

spoke, I did not agree with some of the things24

that you said, but I did not interrupt him, I25
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did not say anything at all, and I have some1

thoughts here and I’m not going to get into2

that.3

We are trying to write answers to your4

questions, you don’t have to - - but please5

allow us - - . Appreciate it, thank you.6

Next question is with regard to7

instructional support how can you consider that8

the - - that Columbus selected and - - revisions9

for public schools. Revisions help because they10

are part of support organization.11

It is one that several apartments of the12

organization. The DOE works very, very close -13

- to provide support, academic support on those.14

While they are separate entities they are15

separate organization, they are - - and these16

revisions for example supplies hundreds of17

students to - - and more importantly it does not18

open – over 100 groups - - here in the city.19

Some of it will be proposed to - - .20

The next question I’m going to ask my21

colleague Brian Chipori [phonetic] to help me.22

Brian is the director of - - planning and I hope23

- - . The question asks how structurally are we24

proposing to phase out this building given that25
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the building is - - .1

MALE VOICE: To answer the question, first2

we do not think that is - - without the3

assistance of the building house. So therefore4

there is no permanent plan in place for the5

future. However I will be meeting with Security6

Council, we will be discussing where7

replacements will be made in this facility and8

it will be fair and equitable in accordance to9

the council’s setting.10

MALE VOICE: The next question is a good11

one, it calls us - - you mentioned poor services12

among the plans since - - . In reference to the13

terms such schools use building space, sometimes14

differently from district schools, again - - .15

The next question revolves around the fact16

that this is a consistently low institution - -17

allow a turnaround school to be phased out. We18

believe that this is the case. Just I’m happy19

with the progress of those documents.20

There is many will buy the bond at the21

school improvement brand to provide funds to New22

York City and other educational institutions.23

For schools that are deemed to be24

consistently low institutions, because it is one25
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of the schools in our city that is deemed to1

be a PLA. They must be run in four models,2

those four models are transformation,3

turnaround, restructure and social.4

Transformation is to provide - - involves a5

number of items, teacher values and different -6

- . Turnaround institutions are very similar.7

Turnaround involves either changing a sense of -8

- .9

MALE VOICE: Folks there are a few more10

questions left on this, we have to answer a11

couple of more to make sure that we have12

detailed information, this is posted online.13

If anybody felt that there is a question14

that they would have wanted to ask - - again15

that can be submitted in email or by calling the16

department of education and information or17

faxing.18

We know it’s getting late and folks are19

starting to leave and we just - - through all20

this. It’s our obligation to make sure we21

answer these questions - - responses. We will22

take a couple of more and there is one question23

that we got is probably for us to make sure - -24

. We will take the last two on here.25
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MALE VOICE: The next question, the last1

two, a couple of them left. Could you please2

clarify as to whether or not students will3

continue to have access to the CTE [phonetic]4

programs as - - is phases out?5

The answer is yes, those that are CTE6

programs will continue to have access to those7

resources.8

The next question is why the school - -9

students. - - are the first to place the method10

where students’ rights are to keeping longer11

periods of September to January - - .12

We’ve worked very hard in the department to13

increase the number of schools that are14

accepting - - students - - just take a15

significant as the kind of students. - - the16

last four years we found some 428 schools that17

are - - .18

I’m going to read a question from a student19

that has just submitted. Do you actually20

believe that the idea to close - - just to phase21

out - - is for good? And do you realize how22

many people can use the - - .23

Again this goes back to the difficult24

decision we had to make. And it’s not the fault25
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of any people here, these - - student, exams1

we believe deserve more - - will provide a2

better educational terms than just using the3

drugs. Schools are phasing in will provide - -4

.5

We will be trying to fully improve this6

building and provide some of some of these7

opportunities that are supposed to be made from.8

And that is very specific - - .9

I’m just going to read the last question.10

The question calls out the utilization of the11

building currently it’s 99%, its projected to12

be—once all this is scaled or phased in or just13

phases out is that I’m trying to be - - I can't14

understand how that money goes in that the15

utilization of the building go down.16

Maybe we think about that as a new ninth17

grade - - . So just to define this, there - - .18

We are going to take into account the entire - -19

.20

So we’ll think about what is intended21

advantage and that is the way we’ve decided to -22

-. Once the building is—once the school - - it23

will be an opportunity for the potential opening24

of the school.25
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MALE VOICE: Thank you Herman [phonetic].1

I want to reiterate again that we’re giving2

responses to all the questions, will be posted3

on the department website, some folks back in4

the room may have difficulty hearing some of the5

answers but we’ll make sure that they are posted6

online prior to the time of the educational7

policy meeting. Before prepare some closing8

remarks I just want turn over to - - .9

MALE VOICE: I just want to say thank you to10

every single person that turned out to support11

Christopher Columbus. I know the time is - - .12

I appreciate the passion and devotion13

expressed by students, parents and local14

official during this - - and this information15

goes back to the 13 panel for educational policy16

renders and it will be able to make some ground17

on the status here.18

They can also hear the podcast of this19

hearing if they chose to do so and on February20

1st and 3rd they will be voting on this proposal21

as well the other 25 proposals and that is the22

other opportunity that you have to express your23

views and we will sample the responses that we24

are providing here tonight, that’s another place25
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that you place those.1

But again I thank you very much for coming,2

have pleasant evening, I know that you had to3

say procedural remarks but again also thanks.4

We have heard many seriously comment this5

evening, we appreciate your feedback and the6

contributions to this hearing.7

We’ve done a number of these hearing over8

the last couple of years and really want to9

thank everybody for having - - to represent10

yourselves, school and your community.11

The information will be shared with the12

panel of educational policy which will have its13

hearing on Columbus, that decision will be heard14

on February 3rd.15

So we have to make decision between those16

two powerful meetings. So by third it is when17

the panel will vote on this proposal.18

Please use the phone number or email address19

at the bottom of the fact sheet that you picked20

at that side. Email any question or concerns.21

Again I thank you all for coming and this public22

hearing—this joint public hearing is officially23

adjourned.24

Thank you.25
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